
FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICTS NOS. 1-3 
 

Agenda is preliminary and subject to change by majority vote of the Boards at the meeting. 

Any individuals with questions regarding this Notice of Regular Meeting and Agenda, or who 

require special accommodation to attend and/or participate in the meeting, should please 

contact the President of the Board of Directors of District 1 at frdistrict2@gmail.com 
 

NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING AND SUMMARY OF AGENDA ITEMS 

 

Board of Directors – D1: Board of Directors – D2: Board of Directors – D3: 

Tom Waterman - President Dave McGraw -  President Craig Brown - President 

Craig Brown - V.P. Terry Larson - V.P. Kim Hussey-V.P. 

Kim Hussey -  Treasurer Andrew Martin - Treasurer Mike McCleary - Treasurer 

Dave McGraw -  Secretary Theodore Michelsen -  Secretary Libby Anglin - Secretary 

Terry Larson - Asst. Sec. Tom Waterman - Asst. Sec. Aaron Hochstein-Asst. Sec. 

                                                        

Consultants: 

Sue Blair, CRS District Manager 

Marcos Pacheco, CRS District Manager 

Nancy Weiss, CRS  District Accountant 

Kelley Duke, Esq.  Legal Counsel 

Jennie Heinze  Community Manager 

 

DATE: Monday, October 7, 2019 

 

TIME: 6:30 P.M. 

 

PLACE: The Retreat at Solterra 

 15260 W. Evans Avenue 

 Lakewood, Colorado 80228 

 

 

I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

 

A. Call to Order/Roll Call/Declaration of Quorum (Districts 1-3) 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Present Disclosures of Potential Conflicts of Interest (Districts 1-3) 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

C. Confirm Posting of Meeting Notices (Districts 1-3) 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 1 of 37

mailto:frdistrict2@gmail.com
mailto:frdistrict2@gmail.com


 
Fossil Ridge Metropolitan District No. 1-3 
October 7, 2019 
Page 2 

 

 

II. APPROVAL OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA (Districts 1-3) 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT (Districts 1-3) 

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________ 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA  

These items are considered to be routine and will be approved by one motion.  There will 

be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a Board member; in which 

event, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in the Regular 

Agenda. 

 

 

1. Approval/Ratification of the payment of claims for the period ending October 2, 

2019 (enclosure) – Pg. 4-5 

2. Approval of the minutes of the August 19, 2019 Combined Special Meeting (enclosure) 

(Districts 1-3) – Pg. 6-13 

3. Approval the minutes of the August 29, 2019 Special Meeting (District 1) (enclosure) – 

Pg. 14-15 

4. Approval of the minutes of the September 12, 2019 Special Meeting (Districts 1-3) 

(enclosure) – Pg. 16-18 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 

V. LEGAL MATTERS 

 

A. TULIP Update – CRS (enclosure) – Pg. 19-22 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

VI. FINANCIAL MATTERS 

 

1. Update on 2020 Budget Development – Director McCleary (verbal) 

2. Reserve Study Update – Director Waterman (enclosure) – Pg. 23 

Page 2 of 37



 
Fossil Ridge Metropolitan District No. 1-3 
October 7, 2019 
Page 3 

 

3. Review Preliminary 2020 Maintenance Fee Presentation – Director Brown (handout) 

4. Approve Summary Financial Processes – CRS (enclosure) – Pg. 24-25 

5. Review Cash Position Statements Dated August 31, 2019 – CRS (enclosure) – Pg. 26-28 

6. Review District 1 Quarterly Financial Statements Dated June 30, 2019 – CRS 

(enclosure) – Pg. 29-33 

7. Explanation of Recurring Fees – Overlook (enclosure) – Pg. 34 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

VII. OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE MATTERS (District 1) 

 

1. Status of Retreat Manager Hiring Action – Director Waterman (verbal) 

2. Plans for Remaining 2019 Social Events – Social Committee (enclosure) – Pg. 35 

3. Landscape Update – Overlook (verbal) 

4. Retreat Patio Fireplace Status – Director Michelsen (enclosure) – Pg. 36 

5. Protective Netting for the Pool – Director Dominic (verbal) 

6. Engineering Update – Director Larson (verbal) 

7. Community Amenities Survey Proposal – Director McCleary (enclosure) – Pg. 37 

8. Status of the Solterra HOA – Overlook (verbal) 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

 

 

VIII.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING IS SCHEDULED FOR MONDAY, December 2, 2019 

 

Page 3 of 37



Page 4 of 37



Page 5 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

    

 

 1 

MINUTES OF THE COMBINED SPECIAL MEETING 

OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

 

FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2 

FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 
 

Held: Monday, August 19, 2019, 6:30 p.m., at The Retreat at Solterra, 15260 W. Evans Avenue, Lakewood, 

Colorado 80228 

 

Attendance 

 

The combined special meeting of the Boards of Directors of the Fossil Ridge 

Metropolitan District Nos. 1-3 was called and held at 6:30 p.m., as shown, in 

accordance with Colorado law.  The following Directors were in attendance: 

 

District 1: 

Tom Waterman – President 

Craig Brown – Vice President 

Kim Hussey – Treasurer 

Dave McGraw – Secretary 

Terry Larson – Assistant Secretary 

 

District 2: 

Dave McGraw – President 

Terry Larson – Vice President 

Andrew Martin - Treasurer 

Theodore Michelsen – Secretary 

Tom Waterman – Assistant Secretary 

 

District 3: 

Craig Brown - President 

Kim Hussey – Vice President 

Mike McCleary – Treasurer 

Aaron Hochstein – Assistant Secretary 

Daniel Dominic – Secretary 

 

Consultants: 

Sue Blair, District Manager, Community Resource Services 

Marcos Pacheco, District Manager, Community Resource Services 

Jennie Heinze, Community Manager 

 

Also present were:  

Giovanni Forrest, YMCA 

Pete & Marilou Hendel, Residents 

Peggy Waterman, Resident 

Lark Birdsong, Resident 

Julie Brisson, Resident 

Gary Greaser, Resident 

Page 6 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

    

 

 2 

Leean McGraw, Resident 

Tom Tancredo, Resident 

Mark Osborne, Resident 

Elaine Jones, Resident 

Rod & Pat Brewster, Residents 

Jenn Penn, Resident 

  

Call to Order A quorum of the Boards was present, and the Directors confirmed their 

qualification to serve.   

  

Approve Agenda 

 

The Boards reviewed the Agenda as amended by adding Item VII. H Social 

Committee Funding and Events.  

 

• District 1: Director McGraw moved to approve the agenda as amended.  

Upon second by Director Waterman, a vote was taken and the motion 

carried unanimously. 

• District 2: Director Larson moved to approve the agenda as amended.  

Upon second by Director Michelsen, a vote was taken and the motion 

carried unanimously. 

• District 3: Director Brown moved to approve the agenda as amended.  

Upon second by Director McCleary, a vote was taken and the motion 

carried unanimously. 

  

Public Comment There was none 

  

Consent Agenda 

 
Consent Agenda Items 1 - 3 

 
1. Approval of the payment of claims for the period ending July 31, 2019 

2. Approve the combined minutes of the July 19, 2019 Special Meeting 

3. Approve the minutes of the July 19, 2019 District 3 Special Meeting 

 

• District 1: Director McGraw moved to approve items 1-2.  Upon second by 

Director Waterman, a vote was taken and the motion carried unanimously.   

• District 2: Director Larson moved to approve items 1-2.  Upon second by 

Director Michelsen, a vote was taken and the motion carried unanimously.   

• District 3: Director Brown moved to approve items 1-3.  Upon second by 

Director McCleary, a vote was taken and the motion carried unanimously.   

  
Legal Matters 

 

Adopt Resolution Establishing the 2020 Board Meeting Schedule: Director 

Waterman (D 1&2) updated the Boards as to why the meetings have been 

scheduled every 60 days and how this proposed schedule will help meet audit 

requirements. 

 

• District 1: Director McGraw moved to adopt the Resolution as presented.  

Upon second by Director Waterman, a vote was taken and the motion 

Page 7 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

    

 

 3 

carried unanimously. 

• District 2: Director Michelsen moved to adopt the Resolution as presented.  

Upon second by Director Larson, a vote was taken and the motion carried 

unanimously. 

• District 3: Director Brown moved to adopt the Resolution as presented.  

Upon second by Director McCleary, a vote was taken and the motion 

carried unanimously. 

 

Adopt a Policy Resolution Establishing the Requirement for Periodic Rebidding of 

District Contracts: Director McCleary (D3) spoke to the Board and recommended 

that the Boards re-evaluate their contracts with major providers occasionally. The 

purpose is not to get new contractors but to make sure they work for the Districts’ 

needs. Director Brown (D 1&3) added that he wants to know that the services that 

are being received are at reasonable price.      

 

• District 1: Director Waterman moved to approve the Resolution as 

presented.  Upon second by Director Larson, a vote was taken and the 

motion carried unanimously. 

• District 2: Director Michelsen moved to approve the Resolution as 

presented.  Upon second by Director Martin, a vote was taken and the 

motion carried unanimously. 

• District 3: Director McCleary moved to approve the Resolution as 

presented.  Upon second by Director Brown, a vote was taken and the 

motion carried unanimously. 

 

Memorandum Regarding Insurance Options and 2020 Directors’ Election – CRS: 

Ms. Blair spoke about the details of the memorandum and the liability coverage for 

events involving alcohol. She recommended keeping the District’s liability limit 

where it is at.  Ms. Blair also presented an option for event coverage known as 

TULIP.  This program would allow the renter to purchase an insurance for their 

event.  Ms. Heinze asked if this was needed or if we could rather just require 

individuals to get their own coverage. Director McCleary (D3) noted that everyone 

would be required to purchase insurance through this program.  Director Waterman 

(D 1&2) added that with liquor being served, this would cover the District if a 

minor was served or if there was an over-inebriated attendee.  Director Brown (D 

1&3) told the Boards he would like to understand the terms and conditions more 

and would like to table this item until next meeting.  CRS will provide additional 

information.  Ms. Blair then spoke about the election and the process that will be 

followed, as well as deadlines that need to be met.    

  

Financial Matters Resolve Final 2018 Audit Reports Bill: Director Hussey (D 1&3) reported to the  

Boards that Stratagem preformed the audits and after they were completed, there 

was an overage realized.  The total overage totaled $4,800.00. Directors Hussey (D 

1&3), Martin (D2), and McCleary (D3) all reviewed the overage and they 

Page 8 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

    

 

 4 

recommend that the Districts split the difference with the auditor.  The Districts 

will pay an additional $2,400.00.  Ms. Blair also offered to credit the Districts 

$1,000.00 to help cover the overage. 

 

• District 1: Director Watermen moved to approve the final 2018 audit report 

bill payment of $2,400.00.  Upon second by Director McGraw, a vote was 

taken and the motion carried unanimously. 

• District 2: Director Michelsen moved to approve the final 2018 audit report 

bill payment of $2,400.00.  Upon second by Director Larson, a vote was 

taken and the motion carried unanimously. 

• District 3: Director Dominic moved to approve the final 2018 audit report 

bill payment of $2,400.00.  Upon second by Director Hochstein, a vote was 

taken and the motion carried unanimously. 

 

Update on 2020 Budget Development: Director McCleary (D3) spoke and let the 

Boards know they do not have a draft yet. Last week they met to begin the process. 

All final numbers will be submitted to CRS by August 30th.  Right now, the District 

is on track to present a draft budget pursuant to statute. 

 

Reserve Study Update – Overlook Management: Ms. Heinze reported that an email 

has been sent to Aspen Reserves stating they were out of contractual obligation 

with the District to which there has been no response.  Ms. Heinze also called and 

spoke to a receptionist that informed Ms. Heinze the reserve study was almost 

complete.  Director Brown (D 1&3) asked if there is a timeline impacted by not 

having a timely product. Director McGraw (D 1&2) asked if the budget numbers 

will change since they don’t have this information. Ms. Heinze responded that she 

will follow up with Aspen Reserves.  

 

Confirm Scheduled Special Meeting – September 23, 2019 re: 2020 Budget: This 

meeting was confirmed.  

 

  

Operations and 

Maintenance 

Matters (D1) 

Engineering Update: Director Larson (D 1&2) reported on the District’s 

engineering activities.  He met with Brookfield management in early July for an 

update and is still tracking the progress. The IDES contract has been terminated. 

Alameda Parkway still needs work. On Macintyre, they continue to work on the 

median and tree line. On Yale Ave., the Districts engineer is working with CTL 

Thompson and Nelson Pipeline to work on the box culvert. Also, Nelson Pipeline 

has filed a formal letter requesting retainage. The District is working on a response. 

Orchard Park – there has been no activity and they are still moving towards final 

acceptance. The City agreed to allow Cardel to plant 5 new trees. Brookefield is 

working hard to get an acceptance from the City and the District will be walking 

the area before this happens. The landscape committee will be involved as well. 

There has been no decision for the liner for the water feature. The liner that was 

Page 9 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

    

 

 5 

picked out will not work. The specs for the liner were requested by Director 

McGraw (D 1&2).  Director Larson (D 1&2) met with Solitude Pond Management 

to see if they had any suggestions.  They will evaluate and report back with 

recommendations. Filing 14, the concrete has been completed and they have been 

performing asphalt repairs. The District’s issues have not been addressed in that 

area. Filing 15, Directors Larson (D 1&2), Michelsen (D2), and Dominic (D3) 

have walked the area to inspect the landscaping and concrete. Filing 16, the north 

side has been walked and there have been agreements on what needs to be done. 

The south side still has issues. They cut off the irrigation due to a break in the main 

feeder line. When replaced, it was never turned back on. Filing 17, Brookefield 

infrastructure has been completed and the City has granted 10 home permits. Ballot 

Question 200 limits residential growth by way of new build units. The City does 

not know how they will enforce this. Director Waterman (D 1&2) asked how this 

will affect buildout to which there was no immediate answer. 

 

Retreat Manager Update – YMCA:  Ms. Forrest reported that there will be 

interviews taking place in the next couple of weeks for a manager. Also, there have 

been changes to the pool hours. Director Larson (D 1&2) asked if she will be part 

of the interview process and she answered yes. She also updated the Board on the 

comparison of cleaning companies. Director Brown (D 1&2) asked if Dust Busters 

provided the same crews regularly and she answered yes. Dust Busters is $150.00 

per week plus post event cleaning. Director McCleary (D3) requested that Ms. 

Forrest confirm that the insurance provided by Dust Busters met the requirements 

set forth by the District. Ms. Forrest also spoke about Handyman Service. Director 

Waterman (D 1&2) asked how they would retain his services. She responded by 

saying that they retain his services on a monthly basis.  Director McGraw (D 1&2) 

suggested that they get a handyman in there to create a checklist then evaluate.  

• Director Hussey (D 1&3) moved that the Board direct YMCA to change 

the cleaning company to Dust Busters. Upon second by Director McGraw 

(D 1&2), a vote was taken and the motion carried unanimously.  

• Director Hussey (D 1&3) moved that the District come up with a list of 

items that needed repair and then hire a handyman to repair these items, 

with the total amount of time spent not to exceed 16 hours.  Upon second 

by Director Brown (D 1&3), a vote was taken and the motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

The access control was discussed. Director McGraw (D 1&2) wants to talk about 

who is allowed in the building and when.  This is a discussion point as we move 

forward in the budget process for 2020.  Director Waterman (D 1&2) spoke about 

the sign proposal that was included.  He feels this is too expensive for what is 

needed.  Ms. Forrest will present more sign proposals at the October 7th meeting.  

 

Retreat/Pool Repair Update: Ms. Heinze spoke about the patio fireplace and let 

everyone know that the building is safe and that they now know where the line is 

Page 10 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

    

 

 6 

and where it feeds from. The gas has been shut off to the fireplace. The proposal 

presented included a match light option.  She also reported that she will continue to 

gather additional proposals. Director McGraw (D 1&2) told the Board he would 

like an additional set of eyes on this project and he would like another opinion.  

The Board tabled this item until the next meeting.  

 

Parking Lot Repave and Restripe: Director Michelsen (D2) spoke and let the 

Boards know that he had received 3 bids for the same scope of work. The lowest 

bid that came in was from Foothills Paving.  They performed the work and did a 

great job. 

 

Protective Netting for the Pool: Director Dominic (D3) told the Boards that he has 

spoken with numerous companies for the protective netting over the pool. He is 

waiting for quotes back. He has also reached out to cruise lines and has sent some 

measurements over that can be used for quoting purposes. The current anchors on 

the pool can be used for the netting and the training can be performed. Director 

Dominic will continue to gather and provide further information on this matter. 

 

Landscape Update: Ms. Heinze spoke and let the Boards know that if the Schultz 

proposal gets approved, they would be over budget. The District’s landscaper told 

the Boards that the areas that require hydroseed will require a large amount of 

water.  He recommended certain timelines of watering and seeding. The irrigation 

in the area came into question. Chris said that he has seen it himself and it is good 

to go.  If not, he will take care of it and it would take no more than half of a day. 

 

Director Larson (D 1&2) moved that the Board approve the Schultz proposal using 

the existing funds, as they were presented tonight. Upon second by Director 

Hussey (D 1&3), a vote was taken and the motion carried unanimously. 

 

The well maintained areas need to be mowed again and Chris suggested that we 

communicate the mowing with the community. He will get back with the Boards 

with a recommendation. 

 

Retreat Use Proposal: Director Waterman (D 1&2) reported that he, along with 

committee members, will be looking into neighboring facilities in an effort to see 

what they charge for similar services.  He also wants to evaluate the YMCA 

contract for 2020. 

 

Community Survey Proposal: Director McGraw (D 1&2) commented on the 

proposed use of a community survey.  He would like the survey completed in an 

effort to provide the Boards with information surrounding facilities within the 

District. He would like to form a committee that would be responsible for rolling 

out this project.  Director Larson (D 1&2) noted that he does not feel another 

committee is needed for this survey and that one of the standing committees would 

be better suited to do so.  Director Hussey (D 1&3) asked when this committee 

Page 11 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

    

 

 7 

would form. The answer was the end of September. It was suggested that this item 

can wait until next year.  

 

Retreat/Pool Prioritized Maintenance Requirements: Elaine Jones spoke about the 

list that was created. With the current budget, they can complete most of it. The 

lights in the pool will need to be replaced. There is not money currently in the 

budget for these lights and she also noted to replace these lights, it would be costly.  

Ms. Jones noted that they can wait on the lights until spring of 2020. 

 

Social Committee Funding and Events: Director Waterman (D 1&2) opened up 

this discussion by saying they are going to add a line item to the budget for this 

committee.  He thinks the District has failed to include the entire community in 

past events. He would like to look at all the events on an event-by-event basis and 

present these to the Board letting the Directors know who is in charge of each 

event. He would like to support the community on their needs. There is an event 

known as Rocktober Fest and he asked Jenn Penn to present this topic.  Ms. Penn 

thanked the Board and apologized for not being at the last meeting. She agreed that 

this committee is needed and said there are several individuals that are committed 

to these events.  Rocktober Fest is already reserved and she would like to receive 

approval to move forward with this family friendly event. Director McGraw (D 

1&2) said that with family friendly events, parents need to be available and willing 

to get involved and help out, as needed.  Director McCleary (D3) suggested that we 

circulate a communication that informs the community that while we are looking 

for participation, we are also looking for staffing for each event. Director 

Waterman (D 1&3) recommends providing tentative approval for the Rocktober 

Fest event, contingent upon Ms. Penn providing the required information to 

Director Waterman, as requested via email. 

  

Adjournment There being no further business to be brought before the Boards, the meeting was 

adjourned at 9:21 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Page 12 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

    

 

 8 

 THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL AUGUST 19, 2019 MINUTES OF 

THE FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 BY THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS SIGNING BELOW: 

 
_____________________________ 

Tom Waterman 

 

_____________________________ 

Craig Brown 

 

_____________________________ 

Dave McGraw 

 

_____________________________ 

Kim Hussey 

 

_____________________________ 

Terry Larson 

 
THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL AUGUST 19, 2019 MINUTES OF 

THE FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2 BY THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS SIGNING BELOW: 

 
_____________________________ 

Dave McGraw 

 

_____________________________ 

Terry Larson 

 

_____________________________ 

Andrew Martin 

 

_____________________________ 

Theodore Michelsen 

 

_____________________________ 

Tom Waterman 

 
THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL AUGUST 19, 2019 MINUTES OF 

THE FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 BY THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS SIGNING BELOW: 

 
_____________________________ 

Craig Brown 

 

_____________________________ 

Kim Hussey 

 

_____________________________ 

Mike McCleary 

 

_____________________________ 

Aaron Hochstein 

 

_____________________________ 

Daniel Dominic 
 

Page 13 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
    
 

 1

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

 
FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

 
 

Held: Thursday, August 29, 2019, 3:00 p.m.,  
at The Retreat at Solterra, 15260 W. Evans Avenue, Lakewood, Colorado 80228 

 
 
Attendance 
 

The special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Fossil Ridge Metropolitan 
District No. 1 was called and held at 5:30 p.m., as shown, in accordance with 
Colorado law.  The following Directors were in attendance: 

 
Tom Waterman 
Dave McGraw 
Terry Larson  
Kim Hussey (via teleconference) 
Craig Brown (via teleconference) 
 
Consultants: 
Sue Blair, District Manager, Community Resource Services 
Emily Powell, Attorney, Ireland Stapleton (via teleconference) 

 
  
Call to Order A quorum of the Board was present, and the Directors confirmed their qualification 

to serve. 
 

  
Resolution 
Imposing One-
Time Fee 

Ms. Powell reviewed the draft Resolution with the Board.  The total cost to repair 
the Access Gate is estimated at $13,741.35, or $1,057.03 per homeowner.  A one-
time Gate Repair Fee in the amount of $1,057.03 will be imposed upon the 13 
properties located within the Gated Community.  After discussion, the Board 
requested that Overlook prepare invoices to these property owners on or before 
September 6, 2019, with a due date on the invoice of October 7, 2019.  Director 
McGraw moved that the Board approve the Resolution as modified.  Upon second 
by Director Brown, vote was taken and motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 
(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank). 

  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 14 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
    
 

 2

  
Adjournment There being no further business to be brought before the Boards, the meeting was 

adjourned at 3:12 p.m.  
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
____________________ 
Secretary of the Meeting 

  
 
THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL AUGUST 29, 2019 MINUTES OF 
THE FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS SIGNING BELOW: 

 
 
_____________________________ 
Tom Waterman 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Dave McGraw 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Terry Larson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kim Hussey 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Craig Brown 

 

Page 15 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
    
 

 1

MINUTES OF THE COMBINED SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

 
FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 
FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2 
FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 

 

Held: Thursday, September 12, 2019, at 7:00 p.m., at The Retreat at Solterra, 15260 W. Evans Avenue, 
Lakewood, Colorado 80228 

 
Attendance 
 

The combined special meeting of the Boards of Directors of the Fossil Ridge 
Metropolitan District Nos. 1-3 was called and held at 7:00 p.m., as shown, in 
accordance with Colorado law.  The following Directors were in attendance: 

 
District 1: 
Tom Waterman – President 
Craig Brown – Vice President 
Kim Hussey – Treasurer 
Dave McGraw – Secretary 
Terry Larson – Assistant Secretary 
 
District 2: 
Dave McGraw – President 
Terry Larson – Vice President 
Andrew Martin - Treasurer 
Theodore Michelsen – Secretary 
Tom Waterman – Assistant Secretary 
 
District 3: 
Craig Brown - President 
Kim Hussey – Vice President 
Mike McCleary – Treasurer 
Aaron Hochstein – Assistant Secretary 
Daniel Dominic – Secretary 
 
Consultant: 
Dino A. Ross, Esq.; Ireland Stapleton 

 
  
Call to Order A quorum of the Boards was present, and the Directors confirmed their 

qualification to serve.   No conflicts of interest were identified.  The posting of the 
special meeting notice was confirmed on Solterra-Connect. 

  
Executive Session 
 

The Boards moved to enter into Executive Session at 7:05 p.m. pursuant to C.R.S. 
24-6-402(4)(b) to consult with and receive advice from legal counsel regarding 
district property responsibilities:  
 

Page 16 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
    
 

 2

 District 1: Director McGraw moved to enter into Executive Session.  Upon 
second by Director Waterman, a vote was taken and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

 District 2: Director Michelsen moved to enter into Executive Session.  
Upon second by Director Martin, a vote was taken and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

 District 3: Director Dominic moved to enter into Executive Session.  Upon 
second by Director Hussey, a vote was taken and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

  
Reconvene into 
General Session 

At 8:25 p.m., the Boards reconvened into General Session. 

  
Adjournment There being no further business to be brought before the District Boards, the 

meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 37



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
    
 

 3

THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2019 MINUTES OF THE 
FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SIGNING 
BELOW: 
 
_____________________________ 
Tom Waterman 
 
_____________________________ 
Craig Brown 
 
_____________________________ 
Dave McGraw 
 
_____________________________ 
Kim Hussey 
 
_____________________________                                                           
Terry Larson 
 
THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2019 MINUTES OF THE 
FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 2 BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SIGNING 
BELOW: 
 
_____________________________ 
Dave McGraw 
 
_____________________________ 
Terry Larson 
 
_____________________________ 
Andrew Martin 
 
_____________________________ 
Theodore Michelsen 
 
______________________________ 
Tom Waterman 
 
 
 
THESE MINUTES ARE APPROVED AS THE OFFICIAL SEPTEMBER 12, 2019 MINUTES OF THE 
FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3 BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SIGNING 
BELOW: 
 
_____________________________ 
Craig Brown 
 
_____________________________ 
Kim Hussey 
 
_____________________________ 
Mike McCleary 
 
_____________________________ 
Aaron Hochstein 
 
______________________________ 
Daniel Dominic 

 

Page 18 of 37



Page 19 of 37



Page 20 of 37



Page 21 of 37



Page 22 of 37



RESERVE STUDY 2019

NUMBER REPAIR REQUIRED
LIFE 

REMAINING
WORST CASE 

COST

202 Wood repaint/stain patio pergola (Retreat) 0 $7,000
207 Metal fencing repaint (Retreat) 0 $8,800
207 Aluminum fencing repaint (gated area) 1 $975
216 Retreat interior repainting 4 $9,750
217 Stamped concrete pool & Retreat coat 0 $50,875
217 Concrete surface pool & Retreat coat 0 $4,325
307 Stucco inspect/repair (Retreat) 0 $14,500
402 Asphalt (Orchard) 0 $2,450
402 Asphalt (gated area) 0 $8,050
403 Concrete partial (townhomes) 2 $95,175

405
Stamped concrete parking lot crosswalk 
(Retreat)

2 $62,900

407 Curbs/gutters repair (Orchard) 2 $2,600
407 Curbs/gutters repair (gated area) 2 $11,200
407 Drain pans/curb/gutters (Retreat) 2 $5,200
601 Concrete flatwork partial (gated area) 2 $7,500
601 Sidewalks 2 $102,650
603 Flagstone caos (pool/wall near tower) 2 $4,500
703 Water heater (Retreat) 4 $5,600
808 Street signs 3 $29,000
903 Security system replace 3 $13,000
904 FOB system (entrance Retreat/fitness building) 2 $4,500
906 Gate motors 4 $16,000

1005 Stone columns 5 $3,600
1110 Filter media (pool) 0 $2,325
1111 Pool pumps 3 $3,500
1111 Pool equipment 1 $4,500
1113 Pool cover 3 $12,350
1121 Pool furniture 0 $20,000
1202 Tennis court recoat 3 $8,000
1303 Tot lot ground cover 2 $4,950
1307 Park furnishings 3 $8,100
1308 Park furnishings (Lupine) 3 $3,950
1416 Retreat office 3 $8,500
9345 Retreat furniture 0 $35,000
1501 Carpeting (bride room & chair room) 0 $1,875
1505 Hardwood floor refinish (Retreat fitness center) 3 $3,900
1603 Landscape lights 2 $5,000
1701 Irrigation repairs 2 $40,000
1703 Irrigation controllers 4 $44,000
1705 Irrigation pumps 1 $72,000
1707 Irrigation computer system 3 $37,500
1809 Water feature dredge 0 $400,000
1809 Pond aeration equipment 0 $7,500
1811 Landscape drain swales 5 $7,000
2030 Maintenance area access road 3 $24,000

Page 23 of 37



1 
 

FOSSIL RIDGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 1-3 

FINANCIAL PROCESSES  

September 1, 2019 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 Monthly financial statements will no longer be included in Board meeting packet. 

 CRS will prepare and provide to the Finance Committee quarterly financial statements for review 

prior to inclusion into Board meeting packets.       

 CRS will include the quarterly financial statements in Board meeting packets at the next regularly 

scheduled Board meeting for review/acceptance by the Board. 

 CRS will provide a cash position statement at every regularly scheduled Board meeting.    

 Cash position statements and accepted quarterly financial statements will be posted on the 

District’s website after Board acceptance.   

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE: 

 CRS will process all accounts payable.   

 Checks will be processed twice per month. 

 All checks (including backup) will be provided to President of FRMD#1 and scanned to the 

Treasurer for each District for review and approval.   

 Executed checks will be picked up by CRS staff for distribution. 

 Paid invoice listings will be included in the regular Board Meeting packets for ratification by the 

Board.   

 If applicable, a list of current invoices to be paid will be presented to the Board for approval at 

scheduled meetings.   

 Overlook will provide invoices received and approved by Overlook to CRS via email. 

Capital Project Invoices 

 Invoices or pay applications are sent by contractors to District Engineer for review and approval. 

 District Engineer to certify costs stating that the costs are related to the Public Improvements and 

are reasonable and have been verified (pursuant to Resolution of the Board Regarding Acceptance 

of District Eligible Costs). 

 CRS and the District’s engineer will develop a formal “certification” form.   

 District Engineer forwards certification, invoices or pay applications to CRS accounting manager 

after review and approval for payment.   

 CRS creates a spreadsheet of invoices due and attaches copies of invoices for submission to 

Brookfield requesting developer advance.  List is sent to Melissa Little at Brookfield.  CRS to 

confirm timing of developer advance payment and confirm receipt of wire transfer into ColoTrust 

account. 

 Brookfield wires developer advance funds to District’s ColoTrust account; transfers made to BBVA 

Bank as needed. 

Page 24 of 37



2 
 

 Checks are processed for payment, accounts payable list is emailed to Tom Waterman for review, 

and checks are signed by the President or Treasurer of FRMD #1.   

 Copies of checks, check register, and affidavit attesting that the listed checks were paid by CRS is 

emailed to Brookfield. 

 Payment of claims is ratified by quorum of the Board at the next regular meeting. 

 

BUDGET PROCESS: 

  

 By the end of August, each Committee will provide to CRS funding requests for next year’s budget.   

 CRS/Overlook to prepare preliminary budget incorporating requests and other budget line items.  

 A meeting will be scheduled for CRS/Overlook and the Finance Committee to review preliminary 

budget and develop a list of recommendations for the Boards to consider.  

 Preliminary budget emailed to the Boards no later than October 15th (statutory deadline). 

 The preliminary budget will not be available to the public until October 15th. 

 Board to schedule a meeting for the community to comment on the budget. 

 CRS/Overlook to meet with Finance Committee to finalize budget.  

 Publication of Notice of Public Hearing to Adopt the Annual Budgets at the December Board 

meeting. 

 Mill levies certified to the County no later than December 15th.   

 Adopted budgets filed with DOLA no later than January 30 of following year. 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 Review of quarterly financial statements 

 Review of annual audit 

 Review of annual budget 

 Research Projects, i.e., developer advances and certified costs 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25 of 37



Page 26 of 37



Page 27 of 37



Page 28 of 37



Page 29 of 37



Page 30 of 37



Page 31 of 37



Page 32 of 37



Page 33 of 37



IMPORTANT PAYMENT INFORMATION. 

Every owner in the community belongs to the Solterra HOA and the Fossil Ridge Metropolitan District.  
In addition, some lots in the community are part of the Patio Home HOA, however, those payments 
are not handled by Overlook Property Management. 

Overlook Property Management bills out the following payments: 

The Solterra HOA is an Annual Assessment due on January 1st of each year.  This Assessment 
includes trash removal and covenant control within your community.  You will receive only 1 bill each 
year from the Solterra HOA. 

The Fossil Ridge Metro District #1 has a Quarterly District Fee.  The District Fee is due at the 
beginning of each quarter (Jan 1, April 1, July 1 and Oct 1).  The Quarterly District Fee includes all 
amenities for your community such as the pool, the Retreat, community flowers, community events, 
lighting, landscaping, etc.  Maintenance Fees are also included in some quarterly assessments where 
agreements provide residents in certain areas with unique services. The Fossil Ridge Metro District 
also bills quarterly for the sewer charges on your individual lot.  Sewer is billed in arrears and is billed 
in addition to the Quarterly District Fee.  Sewer fees are due (May 1, Aug 1, Nov 1, and Feb 1 of the 
following year).  

You receive a total of 8 bills per year from the Fossil Ridge Metro District (4 for the Quarterly District 
Fee and 4 for the Quarterly Sewer).  All bills are tracked from the same ledger so if you have missed 
a payment or if your payment was late your bill will reflect a balance forward. 

Your account numbers in our office are the same for both the Solterra HOA and the Fossil Ridge 
Metro District #1 as they are address based.  Please note that the Solterra HOA and the Fossil Ridge 
Metropolitan District are completely separate and they have separate bank accounts.  When making 
payments be sure to make your checks payable to the proper entity that you wish to pay. 

Paylease is our online payment vendor.  Paylease will assign you a separate account number for 
your online payments.  Your Solterra Online Account number will start with S8 and your Fossil Ridge 
Online Account number will start with F1.  If you would like to link these two accounts under the same 
email address please call our office and we would be happy to assist you.  Otherwise, accounts can 
be set up separately by using different email addresses.  Again, please be sure to consider which 
entity you want to pay before processing your payment.  

Options to pay: 

*Checks made payable to the correct entity:  Solterra HOA and/or Fossil Ridge Metro 

*ACH Auto Draft – Set up directly through Overlook Property Mgmt using a checking account. This is 
a free service 

*Online Payments through Paylease (Please read the above information regarding Paylease 
Payment Processing) Paylease charges a service fee based on how you pay.  

 

 

Page 34 of 37



S
o

lt
er

ra
 H

o
li

d
ay

 P
a

rt
y

 P
la

n
:  

D
ec

em
b

er
 7

th
, 2

01
9

, 1
0:

00
 a

m
 –

 1
:0

0 
p

m
  

S
o

lt
er

ra
 R

et
re

at
 

F
am

il
y

 f
ri

en
d

ly
 e

v
en

t 
  

S
an

ta
 &

 M
rs

. C
la

us
 –

 b
oo

k
ed

 /
 r

es
er

v
ed

.  
S

en
d

in
g 

co
nt

ra
ct

 t
o 

Y
M

C
A

 e
ar

ly
 O

ct
ob

er
.  

 

F
li

pp
in

 F
la

p
 J

ac
k

s 
–

 r
es

er
ve

d
 –

 t
he

y
 w

il
l 

ch
ar

g
e 

p
er

 p
la

te
  

S
o

ci
al

 c
om

m
it

te
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
w

il
l 

b
e 

av
ai

la
b

le
 f

o
r 

se
t 

up
 a

n
d

 c
le

an
 u

p
.  

A
ls

o
 s

ee
k

in
g

 v
o

lu
nt

ee
rs

.  
 W

e 
w

il
l 

ha
v

e 
a 

co
n

fi
rm

ed
 l

is
t 

o
f 

so
ci

al
 c

o
m

m
it

te
e 

m
em

b
er

s 
an

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

er
s 

cl
o

se
r 

to
 t

h
e 

ev
en

t.
   

 
 

20
18

 a
ct

ua
l 

20
19

 b
ud

ge
te

d 
 

 
 

 

C
hr

is
tm

as
 P

ar
ty

 
S

an
ta

 &
 M

rs
. C

la
us

 
$4

50
.0

0 
$5

00
.0

0 
  

$5
00

  
 

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
7t

h 
10

:0
0-

1:
00

 

Fl
ip

pi
n'

 F
la

pj
ac

ks
 (

on
ly

 
ch

ar
ge

d 
fo

r w
ha

t's
 u

se
d-

- 
bu

dg
et

ed
 fo

r 2
50

 p
pl

) 
$2

,1
51

 
2,

40
0 

  
$2

,4
00

  
 

 

  
S

up
pl

ie
s,

 d
rin

ks
, i

ce
, 

de
co

ra
tio

ns
 (i

f n
ee

de
d)

 
$4

74
 

$3
00

 
  

$3
00

  
 

 

  
R

et
re

at
 c

le
an

in
g 

fe
e 

  
$1

50
 

  
$1

50
  

 
 

20
19

 B
ud

ge
t 

  
  

  
  

$0
  

 
 

  
To

ta
l 

$3
,0

75
.0

0 
$3

,3
50

.0
0 

$0
.0

0 
$3

,3
50

.0
0 

 
 

     

Page 35 of 37



Retreat Fireplace Update September 9, 2019 
 
 
Great Room Fireplace 
 No major issues with the inside fireplace that a new timer switch will not cure 
(quick look at Home Depot website, cost $10 to $30 depending on type purchased), it 
is proposed that the new “handy man” will install. For the record, the issue is that the 
fireplace control system is low voltage and as the switches age, the contacts corrode 
and pit, which increases the resistance, which the low voltage cannot easily pass. It is 
no problem for 110 volt systems. 
 
 
Patio Fireplace 
1. Found out propane is not an option because it would be limited to very small 

tanks and it cannot be serviced by a propane company since we have Xcel gas on 
site (apparently State regulations).  

2. The company Gas Connection will provide estimates of some other options, such 
as a more contemporary glass rock filled fireplace or a fire pit (not a good 
recommendation due to open flame and very high gas usage). Which as of 
September 30, have not been received. I will follow up. 

3. Also found out that our current installation does not meet code and most likely 
did not at time of installation. 

4. The log set is badly broken and the burner has a very limited life left. There is no 
benefit in continued use at This point. 

5. All fireplace repair options will require the gas line be replaced (new one in the 
existing sleeve, hopefully) and the pipes from the gas line to the log set replaced 
with code compliant ones (which the current is not). A gas lines replacement is 
estimated to cost about $4,000.  

6. The estimator strongly encouraged a hard on match lit ignition system due to 
reliability problems with electric ignition, also implied that electronic ignition 
could cost ~ $2,000. He further indicated that most outdoor fireplaces use match 
lit because of the weather and dirt issues. Electronic ones are a major 
maintenance issue. 

 

Page 36 of 37



FRMD Amenities Survey Proposal 

As the Fossil Ridge Metro District/Solterra nears buildout completion, it is an opportune time to survey 

the community to obtain resident thoughts on how well the district’s amenities are meeting our needs 

and desires.  Solterra may have originally been envisioned as an empty nester community but has evolved 

into a vibrant mix of residents that run the gamut from mature to young families and includes a host of 

great kids. In recognition of these demographics, we are looking towards amenities that recognize this 

diversity of families and build towards creating community around our Retreat. 

It is recognized that as they exist today, our facilities are largely designed to serve as an events center.  As 

such, there are limitations on what can be done without significant and expensive redesign.  However, 

there are certainly different options regarding what the Retreat is focused on and the kind of activities we 

hold there. 

In order to solicit the ideas of the community, it is proposed that we form a Survey Committee composed 

of community volunteers who will solicit community ideas and recommendations.  This committee would 

be asked to develop and distribute a survey to the community, tabulate the results, and prepare a report 

for the District Board’s consideration.  Clearly, not every recommendation will be doable, but a prioritized 

list of where the community would like to focus our time and resources will be valuable. 

The starting point for this initiative is to find volunteers willing to develop and publicize this survey, 

capture the results, and present them to the FRMD boards. 

Interested residents are requested to contact Ted Michelsen (frmd2tm@gmail.com), Dave McGraw 

(frmd2drm@gmail.com), or Daniel Dominic (frmd3dad@gmail.com). 

 

 

 

Page 37 of 37




